Board of Supervisors: Ronald Flatt, Chairman Kenneth Frenchak Jr, Vice Chairman Andrew Erie, Supervisor Edward Latuska, Supervisor Philip Wulff, Supervisor



Anthony Amendolea, Secretary/Treasurer Mark Lauer, Public Works Director Richard Round, BCO/Zoning Official Michael Gallagher, Solicitor Olsen & Associates, Engineer

CENTER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013 6:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:

Chairman Ronald Flatt called the Regular Meeting, of the Center Township Board of Supervisors, to order at 6:31 p.m. The meeting was held at the Center Township Municipal Building, 419 Sunset Drive, Butler PA 16001.

ROLL CALL:

In addition to Chairman Flatt, present were, Vice Chairman Kenneth Frenchak; Supervisors Andrew Erie, Edward Latuska and Philip Wulff; Township Solicitor Gallagher; Township Engineer Olsen; Public Works Director Lauer and Township Secretary/Treasurer Anthony Amendolea.

PUBLIC TO BE HEARD (3 MINUTE LIMIT):

1. Mr. Ray Eifler, 123 Willow Run Drive: Mr. Eifler questioned the personal use of Township vehicles. He asked if the Township has an individual who responds to nuisances (i.e. cats, dogs, goats, fires).

MINUTES:

- 1. Agenda Setting Meeting July 8, 2013: Latuska motioned approving the minutes of the Agenda Setting Meeting held on July 8, 2013. Wulff seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 2. Regular Meeting Minutes July 10, 2013: Latuska motioned approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting held on July 10, 2013. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

TREASURER'S REPORT

- 1. July 2013: Flatt motioned approving the July 2013 Treasurer's Report. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 2. Warrant List 13-07-14: Frenchak motioned approving Warrant 13-07-14. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

3. Warrant List 13-08-15: Erie motioned approving Warrant List 13-08-15. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

ZONING REPORT: July 2013: Construction costs were \$41,113.00 fees collected were \$1,190.86.

SUBDIVISION & LAND DEVELOPMENTS:

- 1. Hull Plan Lot Line Revision No. 2013-06-06, 404 Glenwood Way, Final, Expires 09/24/2013: The Hull Plan Residents Association, represented by Mr. Brad Cavaliero, proposes a lot line revision conveying .22 acres (m/l) to Center Township Map 060-S12-G1 from Center Township Map 060-S12-D. Butler County Planning have no comments per letter dated July 26, 2013. Township Engineer Olsen comments are (Ms. Cheryl Hughes comments are italicized):
 - a. The purpose of the plan is to subdivide Parcel A from the remnant parcel. This Parcel A does not meet R-1 zoning district: Single Family Lot" minimum area requirements of 1/2 acre. Possible alternatives/solutions are:
 - 1) Designate that this lot will be conveyed to and be combined with other lands now or formerly of Timothy B. and Roberta K. Tritch. (We have added the Tritch property and have designated that Parcel A be combined with their property.)
 - b. The Applicant has indicated that a portion of Lakeshore Drive is currently constructed outside of the public road right-of-way on property of the Hull Plan Residents Association, Inc. We suggest that the Association consider dedicating additional highway right-of-way to Center Township to eliminate this condition, similar to what is being shown along Glenwood Way. (We have designated the portion of the property for Township public R/W purposes.)
 - c. Notwithstanding the non-conformance of Parcel A to Township zoning district requirements, Parcel A is shown on the plan to be a "non-building" lot but without justification for criteria meeting a "Request for Planning Waiver & Non-Building Declaration" as required by the PaDEP to meet Act 537 (the Pennsylvania Sewage Facilities Act). We have attached copies of this "Request for Planning Waiver & Non-Building Declaration" along with an instructions sheet. Sections of the instructions explain when a waiver is appropriate and when it is not. (Since Parcel A is being added to the Tritch property, the non-building declaration is not applicable.)
 - d. Public utilities should be added to this plan unless the Applicant requests and is granted a modification to Article IV Section 14-203.G.l.c of the Codified Ordinance of Center Township. (Attached is a request for a modification to not having to show public utilities on this plan.)

The Planning Commission at their meeting held on July 26, 2013 recommends (1) a modification to Article IV Section 14-203.G.l.c of the Center Township Codified Ordinances and (2) contingent on the receipt of the Butler County Planning Commission's review, final approval of the Hull Plan Lot Line Revision No. 2013-06-06.

Frenchak motioned granting final approval of the Hull Plan Lot Line Revision No. 2013-06-06. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Isacco Major Subdivision No 2013-06-07, 458 W Sunbury Rd, Final, Expires 09/24/2013: Mr. Sam Isacco proposes to subdivide Center Township Maps 060-2F61-31J, 060-2F61-34B, and 060-2F61-34BC consisting of 186.71 acres (m/l) into four (4)

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

lots consisting of 46.68 acres (m/l) each. Two parcels (Center Township Map 060-2F61-31H and 060-2F61-31J) consisting of 4.51 acres (m/l) and 50.85 acres (m/l) were subdivided in August 2011. The Butler County Planning Commission had no comments per letter dated June 20, 2013. Township Engineer comments are (Ms. Cheryl Hughes comments are italicized):

- a. The purpose of this Application is to divide three (3) existing tracts into four (4) tracts for the purpose of estate settlement. (*Comment only*)
- b. The Applicant visited the Planning Commission for a Pre-Application review and was advised that certain difficulties in ordinance adherence may occur, but that the Township would attempt to cooperate with the Applicant as much as possible in this matter. (Comment only)
- c. The Applicant has chosen not to investigate the suitability of soils for on-lot sewage treatment. Therefore, we recommend that the Applicants submit to the Township a "Request for Planning Waiver and Non-Building Declaration." We have attached a copy of this PaDEP form as well as Instructions for completing this form. Division of farmland to settle an estate where no building or development is proposed is an acceptable use of this form. We have asked the owners to process the non-building forms)
 - 1) The five land owners should complete Section A.
 - 2) Buyers or proposed recipients of Non-Building Parcels should sign Section B.
 - 3) Since there is no building with on-lot sewage treatment system on the parent tracts, the Township SEO does not have to complete Section C.
 - 4) The Planning Commission must complete and sign Section D.
 - 5) The designated official for the Board of Supervisors must sign Section E.

A copy of the completed waiver/declaration document and all drawings must be forwarded by the Township to both the PaDEP in Meadville and to the Township SEO. The original must be retained by the Township as part of a permanent record of the Subdivision.

- d. The Applicant has affixed an appropriate notice of the non-building status of the subdivided lots on the plan, which is to be recorded. (Comment only)
- e. The Applicant is proposing to establish four lots, each with a minimum lot area of 1 acre and minimum frontage of 125 feet along the right-of-way line of the streets to which the lots have access except the required frontage on a cul-de-sac is 75 feet (Chapter 20, Article II, 106). Proposed Lots B and C are flag lots with frontage on a proposed cul-de-sac. (Comment only)
- f. Because three of the proposed four lots do not have frontage on an existing street right-of-way, the Applicant is proposing the creation of a private road, extending easterly from West Sunbury Road. The first approximately 1000 feet of the future private road is shown to be an existing 50' wide private right-of-way which currently serves existing Lot 2 (owned now or formerly by F.A. Isacco). This 50' private right-of-way appears to be centered on a property line in common with lands of the Applicant and lands now or formerly J. Isacco, labeled as existing Lot 1. (We have labeled the 50' R/W as a proposed private Road)
 - The Applicant should label the 50' right-of-way as a proposed private road. We suggest that the Applicants may want to protect their future interests by dedicating a 50' wide private road right-of-way entirely within their own property; this way they will not have to rely on the current or future owners of existing Lot 1 and Lot 2 to dedicate right-of-way to the public if the landowners served by the proposed private road decide they wish to construct a public road. (Applicants want to leave the private road as was originally laid out)
 - 2) The proposed cul-de-sac near the western boundary of existing Lot 2 does not have adequate geometric design to define the right-of-way of this cul-de-sac. The Applicant must add a bearing and distance tie to the centerline of the cul-de-sac. The comment 6.a. (above) also applies to this cul-de-sac. (Additional description has been added to the cul-de-sac and right-of-way of the private road)

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

- 3) The right-of-way of the proposed private road should be increased in width at the West Sunbury Road intersection. Future pavement edge radii of turns to meet PaDOT Highway Occupancy Permit criteria may result in need for a 75'± width of right-of-way at the intersection. (R/W of Private road was increased at SR 308)
- g. The Center Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance Chapter 14 Section 14-603 requires that private streets, either proposed or existing, shall not be approved for public dedication, construction or maintenance until the location, design and construction of any such street is in compliance with all applicable requirements of this Chapter. Private streets may be authorized to permit limited subdivision of lots subject to the following requirements: (Comment only)
 - 1) A maximum of four (4) lots, plus a residual parcel containing one (1) existing residential structure, may be approved for access on a private street; (The Application complies with this requirement) (Comment only)
 - 2) The private street right-of-way shall be a minimum of fifty feet (50'), unless otherwise indicated; (The Application complies) (Comment only)
 - 3) The street shall be installed to provide the required minimum width with a mud-free cartway in accordance with the design standards in Table A, which is adequate to enable all weather passage of vehicles; (The road design must be provided see No. h below) (Road design has been provided)
 - 4) Sales agreements for all lots abutting the private road shall include notification to purchasers of the non-liability of the Township for road maintenance. In addition, a certificate of the non-liability of the Township shall be inscribed on the plan when submitted for municipal approvals. (This statement should be provided more clearly on the plan) (A note has been added to the plan to insure that the Township has no liability or maintenance responsibility for the private road)
 - 5) All costs associated with the design, construction, maintenance or any other expense involving said street improvements shall be assumed by private sources with no cost to the Township prior to final acceptance for dedication by Township Supervisors. (Comment only)
 - A temporary turnaround for maintenance and emergency vehicles shall be provided where future street or roadway extensions are designed to occur; said turnaround shall have a minimum eighty foot (80') diameter curb to curb and exhibit a mud-free condition. (The Application complies) (Comment only)
 - 7) A private maintenance agreement form provided by the Township shall be signed and recorded prior to consideration of roadway acceptance. (See No. i below) *Applicant's attorney will address this*)
- h. The Applicant should submit a design for the private road which shows an 18' wide mud-free cartway, a maximum profile grade of 12%, a minimum profile grade of 1% and transition vertical curves lengths as shown in Table A. (Road profile has been provided)
- i. The Township should request Solicitor Gallagher to prepare the private maintenance agreement described in (g.7.) above. (Applicant's attorney to address maintenance agreement of road)
 - Since the Solicitor has determined that the Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance at this time does not require the bonding of non-public improvements and the Stormwater Management Ordinance requires bonding only as part of the building permit application process, we suggest that the Township can grant final approval of the plan if the private maintenance agreement adequately assures that the private road will be built prior to any created lots being converted from non-building lots to building lots.
 - (Once it is constructed,) Costs and expenses of maintenance of the road are stated on a note on the drawing to be shared equally by the grantees of lot conveyance. We suggest that a more detailed agreement be prepared by the Applicant that defines who will be preparing and paying for the preparation of land development permits applications that we are required by state, county and local agencies, and who may be sharing in the cost of road construction.
- j. A note on the drawing states that all easements within the plan are limited to ingress, egress, and regress

Page 5 of 12

APPROVED 09/11/2013 as corrected

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

and no use shall be expanded or modified without prior written consent of any and all signatory landowners. We suggest that the Applicant consider whether easements may be used for private and public utilities. We also recommend that the Applicant consider whether the heirs and assigns of signatory landowners will be part of this process. (Comment only)

The Planning Commission recommended final approval of the Isacco Major Subdivision No. 2013-06-07 at their meeting held on July 24, 2013.

Flatt motioned, with the condition of the signing and recording of the private street agreement concurrently with the subdivision plan, granting final approval to the Isacco Major Subdivision No. 2013-06-07. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

- 3. Glasgow Subdivision No. 2013-06-08, 211 Aggas Rd, Final, Expires 09/24/2013: Ms. Kathy Glasgow proposes to subdivide Center Township Map 060-2F61-14BFA consisting of 23.19 acres (m/l) into two (2) lots consisting of 18.53 acres (m/l) and 4.66 acres (m/l). The Butler Planning Commission has not submitted any comments. Township Engineer Olsen comments are (Ms. Cheryl Hughes comments are italicized):
 - a. The purpose of the plan is to create Lot 1 (which will include the existing house) and to revise the original lot into Lot 2 that meets the definition of a flag lot. (*Comment only*)
 - b. The Application creates a new lot and should be labeled as a subdivision, not a lot line revision. (We relabeled this as a Plan of Subdivision)
 - c. The flag lot must provide 50' of frontage on a street. It is unclear if this requirement is met; a dimension defining frontage on Aggas Road should be added. Also, this subdivision may provide the opportunity to provide a conveyance of lands now or formerly of Kiser to Glasgow for the area of the existing driveway connection to Aggas Road. Most probably sight distance is better at this point and Lot 2 will also use this existing driveway connection. (We have added a dimension to define frontage on Aggas Road)
 - d. The Applicant has chosen not to investigate the suitability of soils for on- lot sewage treatment on Lot 2. Therefore, we recommend that the Applicants submit to the Township a "Request for Planning Waiver and Non-Building Declaration." We have attached a copy of this PaDEP form as well as instructions for completing this form. Division of farmland to settle an estate where no building or development is proposed is an acceptable use of this form. (We will have the owners process the non-building waiver form)
 - 1) The land owners should complete Section A.
 - 2) Buyers or proposed recipients of Non-Building Parcels should sign Section B.
 - 3) Since there is an existing dwelling with an on-lot sewage treatment on Lot 1, the Township SEO must complete section C. His normal fees will apply.
 - 4) The Planning Commission must sign Section D.
 - 5) The designated official for the Board of Supervisors must sign Section E.

A copy of the completed waiver/declaration document and all drawings must be forwarded by the Township to both the PaDEP in Meadville and to the Township SEO. The original must be retained by the Township as part of a permanent record of the Subdivision.

The Planning Commission at their meeting held on June 26, 2013 recommended, contingent on (1) adding note to plan for right-of-way from Judith Kiser; (2) completion of item d (1) through (5), and (3) receipt of Butler County Planning Commission's review, final approval of the Glasgow Minor Subdivision No. 2013-06-08.

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

Flatt motioned, contingent on (1) the signing of the "Request for Planning Waiver & Non-Building Declaration", (2) receipt of the Butler County Planning Commission's review and (3) receipt of the final mylar for signatures, granting final approval of the Glasgow Minor Subdivision No. 2013-06-08. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

- 4. McDonald's Restaurant Land Development No. 2013-07-09, 102 Clearview Cir, Preliminary/Final, Expires 10/22/2013: McDonald's Restaurant, represented by Mr. Mark Mox, proposes to make modifications to the current site (Center Township Map 060-S18-A8) consisting of 1.101 acres (m/l). The modifications are (1) eliminating the Playland, (2) modifying the parking lot, (3) adding a retaining wall with guardrail and fence, (4) adding a side by side drive-thru, (5) bumping the back curb out, (6) relocating the trash enclosure, and (7) add an eight foot (8') front addition. The development requires a fifteen foot (15') easement from Seneca Bank (PNC Bank). There are twenty-four (24) existing parking spaces. The proposed plan will add four (4) additional spaces. Stormwater management will be addressed. The proposed retaining wall requires an engineer seal. A fence will be place between the restaurant and PNC Bank. Butler County Planning has not submitted any comments. Township Engineer comments are (Mr. Mox's comments are italicized):
 - a. The drawings indicate a 4" diameter water line serving the site, but the Utility Information Table on drawing C-3 indicates a 6" water line. The Applicant should resolve this and address whether fire protection is adequate for the existing and enlarged building. (The drawing was incorrectly labeled and will be revised to show a 6" diameter water line. The existing storage area is the only area that ha fire sprinklers. The proposed modifications to the building will have less seats then what was approved when the store was originally built. Therefore the occupancy will decrease and the entire building will not be required to have fire sprinklers.)
 - b. Itisuncertain if the building addition and expanded drive-thru lanes will result in the need for submission of Sewage Facilities Planning Modules. The Applicant should confer with the Butler Area Sewer Authority and resolve this issue. A letter from the Sewer Authority should be provided by the Applicant. The Sewer Authority is no longer located on Hollywood Drive (as indicated on the cover sheet), but has been moved back to 100 Litman Road. (Plans will be submitted to the Butler Area Sewer Authority for review to determine if a Sewage Facilities Planning Module will be required. It is understood that the proposed modification will have less seats then the existing building and the number of fixtures in the rest rooms will not increase. Also the address for the Sewer Authority will be fixed on the cover sheet to 100 Litman Road.) [Butler Area Sewer Authority is not requiring a Sewage Facilities Planning Module per letter dated August 8, 2013.]
 - c. The Applicant is indicating on the drawings that a retaining wall will be installed outside of the PaDOT right-of-way for Route 8, but within an overhead utility easement, which is described in Deed Book Volume 1143, page 300. The Applicant should provide information regarding whether the proposed wall construction is in conformance with any building restrictions of this easement. (Deed Book Volume 1143, Page 300 has been reviewed and there are no building restrictions noted in this Deed. The Deed will be provided.)
 - d. Maximum lot coverage is 70% per Zoning Ordinance section 20-905 with maximum lot coverage defined as the maximum amount of space of a lot which may be covered by impervious surfaces. The Stormwater Management Report page 4 of 9 indicates that impervious areas on the proposed design will increase to 82.2%, which exceeds the 70% allowable. The Applicant should resolve this issue by either reducing proposed impervious areas to a maximum of 70% or possibly requesting a variance due to hardship from the Township Zoning Hearing Board. (McDonald's is proposing to add porous asphalt as shown on the site plan and grading plan. With the addition of the porous asphalt the impervious area has decreased to 69.8% (see page 4 of 9 in the Stormwater Management Report), which complies with the 70% allowable lot overage. See Sheets C-1 and C-2 for location of porous asphalt and sheet SD-3 for the porous asphalt detail.

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

- e. It appears that the Applicant is proposing to comply with the Center Township Act 167 Stormwater Management Ordinance by installing an underground system of 15" diameter High Density Polyethylene pipes bedded in ASTM D2321 Class I course aggregate or Class II gravel soil.
 - The Stormwater Management Report page 6 of 9 describes the pipes as 24" diameter. The Applicant should resolve this discrepancy. (The report has been revised to show the pipe size to be 15" diameter.)
 - 2) There also appears to be a discrepancy where the drawings show the pipe as solid wall and the report describes a perforated wall pipe system; this must be resolved by the Applicant. (*The system consists of both solid and perforated pipes.*)
 - 3) We are concerned that the proposed underground stormwater storage/infiltration system is to be located so close to the proposed retaining wall, which is to be backfilled with gravel. The Applicant should address:
 - a) Will the underground gravel-filled pit seep into the wall French drain, causing unforeseen rapid seepage release through the face of the wall? (There will be on site soil between the infiltration system and the drainage zone behind the wall; therefore the underground gravel filled pit will not seep into the wall.)
 - b) Will the close-proximity of the underground gravel-filled detention/infiltration pit to the wall affect the effective soil strength parameters assumed in the structural calculations for the retaining wall system? The Applicant should provide a statement from ACA Engineering (designers of the wall system) addressing this question. (The gravel filled infiltration system will not affect the effective soil strength parameters since the gravel will have a higher friction angle than the design.)
 - c) It is unclear from notes on drawing W-1 whether "suggested quality assurance provisions" in the General Notes will, in fact, be followed. This should be clarified. (ACA Engineering will be on site to inspect the construction of the wall.)
- f. The light pole foundations on the West side of the building may be too close to the retaining wall to meet structural condition General Note No. 6 on drawing SD- 4 Lot Light Pole Design. (The Structural Engineer and Geo Technical Engineer will review the foundation and wall design to ensure structural stability of light pole foundations on the West side of the building.
- g. The note on Drawing C-1 Keynote #27 states that the Contractor shall adjust area light locations to accommodate the existing overhead electric lines. We suggest that it be modified to require that relocations be coordinated with the project engineer and Allegheny Power to accommodate overhead electric lines. (The above comment is actually referencing Keynote #17 not Keynote #27. Keynote #17 will be revised as stated.)
- h. Per the Township Act 167 Stormwater Management Ordinance, the Landowner and Township must sign "the Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement", and this must be recorded in the Butler County Courthouse as part of final approval of the land development. (The Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement has been sent to the McDonald's Corporation for review and execution.)

The Planning Commission at their meeting held on July 24, 2013 recommends, contingent on (1) addressing Olsen's comments a through h, (2) verifying PNC Bank's coverage (*The existing impervious area for the bank lot is* 60.64%. *The proposed impervious area after property is taken by McDonald's is* 65.17%. *The bank lot will still comply with the maximum lot coverage of* 70 %.) and (3) receipt of Butler County Planning Commission's review, preliminary and final approval of the McDonald's Restaurant Land Development No. 2013-07-09.

Frenchak motioned granting modification to Center Township Codified Ordinance

Page 8 of 12

APPROVED 09/11/2013

as corrected

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

Chapter 14, Article IV, Section 14-403, Subparagraph A, requiring preliminary approval. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Erie motioned, contingent on (1) the signing of the "Operation & Management Agreement" for stormwater management, (2) posting of the performance bond in the amount of \$62,403.33, (3) the receipt of the Butler County Planning Commission's review, and (4) the agreement with PNC Bank, granting final approval of the McDonald's Restaurant Land Development No. 2013-07-09. Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS:

- 1. Adopt Sewage Disposal Ordinance No. 2013-08-07: Doug Duncan, Sewage Enforcement Officer, reviewed current ordinance for retaining tanks, which do not include holding tank enforcement for gas well drilling sites. The ordinance was advertised in the Butler Eagle edition on August 4, 2013. Latuska motioned adopting the Sewage Disposal Ordinance No. 2013-08-07. Flatt seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 2. FirstEnergy Solutions Contribution: The Butler County Commissioners released a letter informing the residents on possible savings on their electricity. FirstEnergy will contribute \$5.00 per residential transfer to the Township, if a W-9 is submitted to FirstEnergy. Latuska motioned authorizing the release of the W-9 to FirstEnergy Solutions for receipt of \$5.00 per residential transfer. Erie seconded. Frenchak opposed because the County Commissioners had no right to enter into an agreement. Motion carried 4 to 1.
- 3. Set Trick or Treat Night: In the past, the Board set Trick or Treat Night to coincide with Butler City and Butler Township. *Erie motioned setting Trick or Treat Night at the same day and time as Butler City and Butler Township. Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.*
- 4. Planning Commission Appointment Resolution No. 2013-08-13: The Board of Supervisors accepted Mr. Lloyd Eagal's resignation effective July 25, 2013. An ad was placed in the Butler Eagle for a replacement. Flatt motioned approving Resolution No. 2013-08-13 appointing Thomas G Schiebel to serve on the Planning Commission until December 31, 2016. Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
 - Since Thomas Schiebel resigned from the Zoning Hearing Board, the Board must fill the vacancy. Flatt motioned authorizing a "Help Wanted" ad be placed in the Butler Eagle to fill the vacancy through December 31, 2014. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 5. Knox Box Installation: Knox Boxes have been received for the Municipal and Maintenance Facility Buildings. They must be installed based on the recommendation of the fire department. Guardian Protection Services will need to be contacted for

APPROVED 09/11/2013

as corrected

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

installation of the alarm. Latuska motioned authorizing the installation of the Knox boxes on the Municipal Building and Maintenance Facility. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

- 6. Fleeger Sewage Appeal: Ms. Mary Fleeger applied for a sewage permit which was denied by Sewage Enforcement Officer Duncan on April 27, 2013. The Department of Environmental Protection concurs with Duncan's denial. Mr. Gary Fleeger submitted a request for appeal to the Board after the required ten (10) day period. Flatt motioned (1) endorsing the actions of Sewage Enforcement Officer Duncan and (2) authorize legal action. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 7. Welsch Complaints: Mr. Robert Welsch, 5378 McCandless Road, submitted four (4) complaints concerning placement of rebar along the roads and bushes blocking sight distance. Public Works Director Lauer measured the site triangle for the intersection at West Brewster Road (T-450) and South Benbrook Road (SR3007). The bush sits within the site triangle. Erie motioned, based on Public Works Director Lauer's recommendation, authorizing Building Code Official/Zoning Officer Round to send a letter to Mr. & Mrs. Thomas F. Melnik, 103 West Brewster Road (Center Township Map 060-3F43-19D requesting removal of the bush and rebar stakes and contact Public Works Director Lauer for compliance no later than Monday, August 26, 2013. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 8. Personnel Policy Manual: The Board desires to update the current personnel policy manual. Flatt motioned amending the Personnel Policy Manual by adding the following:

Those employees provided a Township vehicle, are:

- 1. free to use that vehicle to and from work. Incidental or minor side stops along the way are permitted,
- 2. free to use their vehicle within or outside the Township as the need arises in the performance of their duties, and
- 3. free to use the vehicles when participating in activities outside of the employees normal work duties but are Board approved (bank deposits, emergency responses) during or contiguous to their routine scheduled work hours.

Any use not (a) deemed a part of the employees work duties or (b) not part of an affirmative vote by the Board is prohibited.

In the future the Board may chose to install electronic position sensing devices in Township vehicles. Doing so carries no implication of wrongdoing on the part of any employee.

Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR:

1. Road Salt Purchase: Public Works Director Lauer purchased 2,000 tons of road salt from the 2012-2013 Contract. Consensus of Board is to continue to apply a 50/50 mix.

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

- 2. 1978 John Deere Model 570A Grader: The Board authorized the purchase of a 1978 John Deere Model 570A grader from Zone Construction in the amount of \$15,000.00, which will be delivered on Thursday, August 15, 2013. Latuska motioned, based on Public Works Director Lauer's recommendation, authorizing advertising the sale of the 1970 WABCO Model 440 grader, with minimum bid established by the scrape value, in the Butler Eagle. Flatt seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 3. Boom Mower Attachment: Public Works Director Lauer received a quote for a 2013 Massey Ferguson Model 5455 tractor and Tiger Side Stow Bengal Boom 50" rotary mower attachment (State Contract 2420-01) in the amount of \$89,095.00 delivery included. If we use the 2005 John Deere Model 6320 as a trade in, the purchase price is \$57,095.00.

Flatt motioned authorizing the purchase of the 2013 Massey Ferguson Model 5455 Tractor two (2) wheel drive and the Tiger Side Stow Bengal Boom 50" Rotary Mower from Walsh Equipment (State Contract 2420-01) for \$89,095. Frenchak seconded. Discussion followed.

Flatt stated the health, safety and welfare of the residents are affected by overhanging branches and site distances. Roads deteriorate due to shade. With the sale of the previous boom mower in 2011, the Board thought we could rely on surrounding municipalities to assist. There are no vendors available to contract with. The mower will be used 100 to 300 hours per year.

Frenchak question why the 2005 John Deere tractor is four wheel drive.

Erie questioned where, was the safety, in 2012 and 2013 when the mower was sold in 2011. Erie felt the monies could be used to repair McCandless Road (T-410) and Brown Road (T-412).

Wulff stated the boom mower should not have been sold in 2011. He stated we need the capability to maintain roadways. Wulff does not think two (2) tractors are not (as corrected 09/11/2013) needed.

Erie opposed. Motion carried 4 to 1.

- 4. Butler County Safety Seminar 10/02/2013 Tanglewood \$15: Butler County Association of Township Supervisors scheduled the Annual Safety Seminar on October 2, 2013 to be held at the Tanglewood Center. The cost per attendee is \$15.00. Public Works Director Lauer requests that Allison, Brewster, Moorhead, Smith, Winchester and Young attend. Frenchak motioned authorizing Allison, Brewster, Moorhead, Smith, Winchester and Young to attend the Butler County Safety Seminar on October 2, 2013 at a total cost of \$90.00. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 5. Brown Road (T-412) Repair: Brown Road (T-412) has been temporarily repaired and restricted to one (1) lane for up to thirty (30) days. A wet area was found and a "French drain" system was installed. Due to pending inclement weather, Flatt authorized the attainment of shale from Jeff Winchester.
- 6. Tank Truck: The tank will be removed from the truck purchased from Chicora Fire Department. Lauer requests authorization to advertise the sale of the tank and pump. Latuska motioned authorizing advertising the sale of the tank and pump in the Butler Eagle. Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED 09/11/2013

as corrected

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

- 7. Sale of 1989 International Truck: Once the salt bed is removed from the 1989 International Truck, Lauer recommends selling the cab and chassis. *Frenchak motioned authorizing advertising the sale of the 1989 International cab and chassis in the Butler Eagle. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.*
- 8. Millings: The Township has excess millings from the 2013 Paving Project. Lauer requests authorization to sell the excess millings. Flatt motioned authorizing the sale of half of the excess millings at \$10.00 per ton. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 9. 2013 Seal Coat: Russell Standard Corporation requests an extension, due to the excessive rain, until September 15, 2013 to complete the 2013 Seal Coat Project. Latuska motioned authorizing an extension to Russell Standard Corporation until September 15, 2013 to complete the 2013 Seal Coat Project. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 10. 2013 Paving Project: The 2013 Paving Project is complete except for sealing of the seams.

ENGINEER'S REPORT:

1. Township Property (419 Sunset Drive): Olsen contacted Mr. Jan McDonald about relinquishing the right-of-way through the back parcel. McDonald's property boundary is in front of the garage. Frenchak motioned authorizing Chairman Flatt, with the assistance of the Township Engineer Olsen and Township Solicitor Gallagher, to contact McDonald about relinquishing the right of way and donating the corner of the property. Erie seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

SOLICITOR'S REPORT:

- 1. Fleeger Judgment: Building Code Official/Zoning Officer Round took Mr. Rick Fleeger to the Magistrate for failure to renew annual home occupation permit. The Magistrate fined Mr. Fleeger \$636.00, which has not been paid. Since Township Solicitor Gallagher has a conflict of interest, the Board will need to assign another solicitor to start proceeding to collect the monies. Flatt motioned authorizing Township Solicitor Gallagher to recommend special counsel. Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.
- 2. Schenck vs. Office of Open Records: Ms. Beverly Schenck granted the Office of Open Records an indefinite extension until the Office of Open Records can review the documents. Township Solicitor Gallagher may not release invoices to the Office of Open Records.

MISCELLANEOUS:

1. Community Coordination and Outreach Meeting: The Federal Emergency Management Agency scheduled a meeting on September 5, 2013 from 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. at the

Page 12 of 12

APPROVED 09/11/2013 as corrected

Center Township Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Minutes August 14, 2013

Butler County Government Public Meeting Room. Erie motioned authorizing Chairman Flatt and Township Engineer Olsen to attend the Community Coordination and Outreach meeting on September 5, 2013 from 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. at the Butler County Government Public Meeting Room. Latuska seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT:

Erie motioned to adjourn at 8:27 p.m. Frenchak seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

Anthony A. Amendolea	Ronald E. Flatt	
Township Secretary/Treasurer	Chairman	
Kenneth J. Frenchak, Jr	Andrew Erie	
Vice Chairman	Supervisor	
	•	
Edward G. Latuska	Philip B. Wulff	
Supervisor	Supervisor	
*	•	